OREGON INTERNATIONAL PORT OF COOS BAY CHARLESTON MARINA ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING

12:00 p.m., Wednesday, October 16, 2024

Charleston Marina RV Park, Recreation Room

MINUTES

ATTENDANCE

Advisory Members:

Kyle Cox; Tyler Long; Kathleen Hornstuen; and Knute Nemeth. Nick Nylander, Chair; Lou Leberti; and John Blanchard were absent.

Port Staff:

Lanelle Comstock, Chief Executive Officer; Mike Dunning, Chief Port Operations Officer; Ray Dwire, Charleston Marina Manager; Megan Richardson, Director of Finance & Accounting; Cheryl Charitar, Charleston Office Administrator; Julie Williams, Charleston Office Assistant; and Krystal Karcher, Administrative Services Manager.

Guests:

Ed Fleming; and Port of Coos Bay Commissioner Kyle Stevens.

1. <u>CALL MEETING TO ORDER</u>

Knute Nemeth called the meeting to order at 12:04 p.m.

2. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

3. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

A. Approval of July 17, 2024 Meeting Minutes

At the time of this agenda item, a quorum was not present to vote. Minutes were reviewed with no comments from Committee members present.

4. <u>FINANCIAL DATA REVIEW</u>

Megan Richardson reviewed the financial data for Charleston Operations. In the first quarter FY24/25, Charleston had operating income of about \$925K compared to a budget of about \$836K, better than planned by \$89K. More ice was sold this quarter than anticipated. Total operating expenses were about \$554K, compared to a budget of \$694K, about \$141K underspent. Total operating results were a net gain of \$371K compared to a budgeted net gain of \$141K, which is \$230K better than planned. Charleston net result was a net gain of about \$243K compared to a budgeted net gain of about \$35K, or about \$209K better than planned.

5. <u>CURRENT PROJECTS UPDATE</u>

Ray Dwire stated the roof repair on Building 30 has been completed by Daryl Rodgers Construction, then he presented an update regarding the operations of the Ice Plant.

The Ice Plant utilizes salted flake ice which provides better product coverage, faster cooling, greater product protection, among other benefits. Salinity levels need to be at 300-500 parts per million (ppm) salt. Proper salinity levels ensure the freezing temperature is much colder. During the ice making process, water is sprayed on the inside of the drums which are supercooled to -25 to -35 degrees F. At last check the drums were at -27 degrees F. The temperature of the bin needs to be maintained or the ice will become slushy, as was reported at a recent Commission meeting. Five of the eight cooling fans were defective so the bin was not as cold. Those fans have been fixed and the bin is currently at about 10 to 12 degrees F.

The delivery of ice is measured by the auger system; it is sold by the ton and the weight is based on a full auger and full flow during delivery. If the volume in the auger is not full, the scale of ice delivered may be incorrect. There are times when there is a blockage or a reduced flow and staff have been instructed to make a judgement call as to when that flow effects the amount of ice delivered. Mr. Dwire stated Port staff delivered ice into totes to check the weight of ice delivered. The scale showed 0.5 ton of ice and each of the two bins weighed 800 lbs. When the auger is full, it is delivering more ice than the scale reads.

Mr. Dwire stated there was a problem recently with high chlorine levels in the ice. Although this is not currently an issue, staff are working to prepare for it should it become an issue again. Chlorine levels are being monitored and are currently at about 1 ppm.

Mr. Dwire shared a chart with ice revenue cost comparisons, and how many tons would need to be sold at different price points to make the same revenue as the current price point. This information was provided to Commissioners based upon their request. In FY24/25 ice sales have been significantly higher than in previous years. In the first quarter 2,002 tons of ice have been sold. For the previous fiscal year, a total of 2,234 tons were sold. Mr. Dwire stated that moorages are also up, as well as use of the short term Shipyard work area and other services.

Mr. Dwire provided additional information about the issue of wet ice. Port maintenance and security staff check the temperature of the bin multiple times throughout the day to ensure a faster response should the temperature become an issue again. The Port has the ability to make the best ice on the coast and measures are being taken to ensure the quality of ice meets the expectations of the fishermen.

Mr. Dwire shared maps depicting the area of Port responsibility for dredging and the area of Army Corps responsibility. The last time the Corps' area was dredged was in 2020, and the Port piggybacked on that work. Around that time, the Port began work on the Section 107 study to have the Corps assume maintenance responsibility for that entire area. The Port dredged in 2022 but the Corps did not. Survey results from 2022 and most recently were shared.

Mike Dunning stated the Port has been working with the Corps to get the coastal clamshell contract here to dredge. The bid was put out, but estimates came in double of previous years. A contract was negotiated, then there was a protest and the contract was terminated. Letters have been sent in support of the need for coastal dredging. If this shoal doubles in size, the inner basin will not be accessible for

larger vessels. The Corps is working on it, but it does not look promising. Reasons include the in-water work window, lack of funding, and weather. Staff have been evaluating contingency plans.

Mr. Dunning stated the tentatively selected plan for the Section 107 feasibility study should be available in November. Port staff have asked the Army Corps to assume maintenance dredging responsibility for the area from the federal navigation channel in front of B dock, Point Adams and the fuel dock and all the way to the boat ramp. It is likely they will not go all the way to the boat ramp and may stop just past the fuel dock. This will still include the area that sees the main issue.

Knute Nemeth asked if there was an option for Coos Bay to get its own dredge. Mr. Dwire stated the cost of the dredge would be high, but also the cost to maintain it would be high. Mr. Nemeth stated the option should be looked at. Mr. Dunning stated the Port has used the state dredge more than any other port, and there is an opportunity to potentially use it next year.

Mr. Dunning stated one problem is the amount of material that is authorized for the disposal site G. The Corps has limited that to 5,000 cubic yards in one year. The Port was able to get approved for disposal of 10,000 cubic yards last year. There is currently a backlog of 140,000 cubic yards between the Shipyard and Marina to get everything to depth. The upland disposal site in Barview needs work to be ready for material, and is generally reserved for any contaminated material that is found.

6. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

A. Approval of July 17, 2024 Meeting Minutes

A quorum is now present. Upon a motion by Kathleen Hornstuen, the Charleston Advisory Committee Members voted to approve the July 17, 2024 Meeting Minutes. **Motion Passed Unanimously.**

7. ROUNDTABLE DISCUSSION ON FACILITIES MAINTENANCE NEEDS

Kathy Hornstuen asked whether there were comments on the project worksheet from the last meeting. Mr. Dwire stated there was only one submittal so far and staff would like to see more responses.

Ed Fleming stated that dock maintenance is an ongoing concern, as well as overhead lights and pedestals that need repair. Mr. Fleming asked how long staff are away for a dredging project. Mr. Dunning stated it depends on the project but it is usually two to three months. Mr. Fleming asked how this impacts dock work. Mr. Dunning stated there is no other port with the capacity to run the state dredge, so if the Port of Coos Bay did not step up the equipment would not be there for ports. It does place a strain on operations. The last time Garibaldi was dredged, there were six staff members sent. This time there are only four going, and two staff from Garibaldi will help.

Mr. Fleming asked about the status of the Connect Oregon grant application. Mr. Dunning stated the final review and decision is upcoming from the Transportation Committee. It is not looking probable right now; the project is currently ranked below the cut needed to get funding.

Mr. Dwire stated the Port received a grant from the Oregon State Marine Board for resealing and repainting the parking lots. This is a \$40,000 project. The Port also submitted an application for a SDAO safety grant for additional cameras and lighting in the Shipyard.

Mr. Nemeth stated that he heard from a longtime commercial fisherman complaining about the restrooms being locked afterhours and being unable to access the facilities. Mr. Dwire stated the Port is in the process of installing key pad entry on each of these doors. Marina customers who need access can contact the Port office or Security if it is afterhours.

8. PUBLIC COMMENT

Mr. Fleming thanked Port staff for posting the meeting announcement on the dock heads. Mr. Dwire stated the Port has the donated anchor stored for the Fishermen's Memorial. Mr. Nemeth stated this was donated by the Lilienthal family.

9. <u>COMMITTEE COMMENT</u>

Mr. Nemeth stated the recent Octoberfish celebration was a successful event and had close to 250 people attend. The event raised around \$2,000 for the Charleston Food Bank.

10. <u>NEXT MEETING DATE</u>

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, January 15, 2025 at 12:00 p.m.

11. ADJOURN

Knute Nemeth adjourned the meeting at 1:22 p.m.